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3.  Classification 

a.  Ownership of Property: Private  

b.  Type of Property:              Commercial (Charitable function hall)  

c.  National Register Status:  Listed as a contributing resource to Newton Highlands 

National Register Historic District  

4.  Function or Use 

a. Historic Functions:   Social Club 

b. Current Functions:   Social Club 

5.  Zoning 

The Zoning District is BU1, which requires a minimum square foot lot of 10,000 sf making 

this lot nonconforming 

6.  Description 

Neighborhood Description:  The property is in the Newton Highlands National Register 

Historic District in a densely developed neighborhood containing a mix of late 19th and 

early 20th century historic commuter homes and small businesses.  This property forms one 

of the northern-border properties of the National Register-listed district.  

 

Women’s Club of Newton 

Highlands 

1.  Name of Property 

 72 Columbus Street (NWT.3374) 

a.  Historic Name: Women’s Club of Newton Highlands 

b.  Common Name: 

2.  Location 

Women’s Club of Newton Highlands  

a.  Street Address: 72 Columbus Street 

              b.  Zip Code: 02461 

c.  Assessor’s #:  52008 0002 
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7. Architectural Description: 

(1) Materials: 

Foundation:       Concrete 

Walls:     Stucco    

Roof:                   Asphalt shingle 

Windows:    Replacement 6/6 double-hung sash with brick windowsills 

Ornamentation:    Raised parapet end-walls with chimneys; enclosed, columnar front foyer topped 

by gabled stucco element with inset arched fanlight; brick windowsills.   

Vegetation:   Lawn 

(2)  Verbal Description: 

Historical appearance:  72 Columbus Street is an example of an early 20th-century building 

designed in the Colonial Revival and Spanish Eclectic Styles, which exhibits the major 

architectural tenets of a popular style adapted to diminutive form. The 1.5 story structure 

has a gabled roof with raised parapet features at either end.  A concrete foundation 

supports the building, and the roof is sheathed in asphalt shingle. 

In keeping with the period detailing of the structure, the building is sheathed in stucco, 

with brick windowsills.  Two interior end-chimneys extend from either side of the roof.   

The façade is, not surprisingly, the most decorative of the four elevations and has five 

symmetrical bays with a central entrance.  An enclosed front foyer encases the front 

entrance, which has columns supporting a gabled roof.  A single concrete stair leads down 

to the front yard.  Classical sidelights and an oversized fanlight frame the front entrance, 

which is topped by a decorative, oversized stucco pediment supported by Tuscan columns.  

Three flat-roofed ells were constructed onto the rear of building. The largest ell covers 

most of the rear façade and stands on concrete pilings.  This ell also is sheathed in stucco.  

A second small ell at the northeast corner of the building serves as an enclosed rear 

entrance and is of vertical wood siding with a small window and a door.  The third ell 

extends off the largest ell near the southwest corner of the building and is sided in vertical 

board with some windows.   
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1927 sketch done by Edward Stratton that was published in the Boston Globe, March 1927 

Current appearance:  With the exception of the three small rear ells, no changes appear to 

have been made to the footprint of the structure since its construction.  Minor changes 

such as the replacement windows are evident, and a wheelchair ramp now leads to the 

front entrance.  The original architectural plans do not show the front entrance as 

enclosed, however no building permits exist so it is possible the plans changed during 

construction, or this was an early alteration. The club house has retained its stucco 

appearance, detailing, chimneys and roof form, and is considered architecturally intact. 

A central path leads to a concrete stair and the front entrance.   

7.   History of Property 

  

a. Deed History:   

Date: 1927 
From: Seward W. Jones 
To:  The Workshop of the Women’s Club of Newton Highlands, Inc. 
Book/Page:  5066/103 
 
Date: 1918 
From: John Linn 
To:  Seward W. Jones 
Book/Page:  4225/548 
 
Date: 1917 
From: Philip B. Long 
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To:  John Linn 
Book/Page:  4112/499 

 

b.  Building Permit History:    

1927: Building permit issued for construction of building to be used as a women’s club. 

Designed by E.B. Stratton, constructed by A.W. Ellis of Wollaston. 

1945:  Building permit issued to “enlarge present rear porch to fill the corner as shown by 

dotted lines.  Door and steps to remain as now are.”  This permit was for work to the rear 

NE corner of the building. 

1946: Building permit issued to “take out interior partition to enlarge kitchen and move 

two inside doors.” 

1984:  Building permit issued to replace roof over back porch and replace exterior back 

door. 

2003: Building permit issued to replace 10 windows. 

2011: Building permit issued to construct an accessible concrete ramp at the front of the 

building and convert two bathrooms to accessible use. 

2021:  Building permit issued to bring two porches up to code and repair basement ceiling 

8.   Significance of Property 

a. Period of Significance    The period of significance for 72 Columbus Street is 1927 to 

1971.  This period encompasses both its construction and single dedicated use as a 

women’s club.  This property has no outbuildings.  This property is also known as the 

Workshop of Women’s Club of Newton and is included on the MACRIS list for historic 

properties in the state. 

b. Historical Significance   Though initially developed as a commuter suburb in the late 

19th century, the Newton Highlands National Register Historic District includes intact, 

contributing examples of the late suburban period (1920s to early 30s) as well.  

Historically, this structure is important for its contribution as a women’s club to this 

neighborhood during its second round of steady growth in the 1920s.  The National 

Register nomination cites the significance of this building under the categories of 

Architecture and Community Planning.  This property has served as an important visual 

and historical community resource in the well-established residential neighborhood of 

Newton Highlands Village.  Its continued use as a social meeting place illustrates a 

continuing contribution to the surrounding neighborhood and community. 
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The Women’s Club was designed by Edward B. Stratton, a prominent and prolific 

architect whose work can be found throughout eastern Massachusetts.  Stratton was 

born in Chelsea, MA in 1870. He studied architecture at M.I.T and in Paris and 

practiced in Boston for over 50 years beginning in 1900.  Stratton is known to have 

designed 46 other surveyed structures in Massachusetts, 27 of which are listed on the 

State Register in Ashland, Barnstable, Boston, Brookline, Cambridge, Newton, and 

Wellesley.  Thirteen surveyed historic resources designed by Stratton are in Newton, 

and of these, three are listed on the State Register.  A fourth, a home Stratton 

designed for him and his family, is located at 25 Kenmore Street and is individually 

listed on the National Register of Historic Places.  

In the Boston area, Stratton designed commercial buildings such as the Hotel Puritan, 

Hotel Somerset, and the Hotel Lenox, but also numerous residences. In addition to his 

own home, Stratton’s other Newton commissions include #9 The Ledges Road (1915), 

which is in the Gray Cliff National Register Expanded Historic District. Stratton’s other 

Newton commissions include the West Newton Library at 25 Chestnut Street (1925), 

now the Newton Police Annex and a contributing resource to the West Newton 

National Register Historic District; commercial buildings such as the Vitalait Laboratory 

at 555 Commonwealth Avenue (1914), which is another Spanish Eclectic structure at 

the corner of Commonwealth Avenue and Irving Street; the Cozens Block at 991-999 

Boylston Street; and 630-634 Commonwealth Avenue (1921, NC-B) at the corner of 

Commonwealth Avenue and Centre Street, which exhibits similar parapet detail to 

that found at 72 Columbus Street.  

 

555 Commonwealth Avenue Newton, MA designed by Edward Stratton 

Historically, women’s clubs were very popular in Newton’s villages.  Between the late 

19th and the early 20th century, over 60 women’s clubs have been documented in 
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Newton.  Two of them, in Newton Highlands and Newton Centre, were able to 

construct their own club houses.  Unlike 72 Columbus Street, the women’s club house 

for Newton Centre is no longer in use for the social function as it was sold in 1973. The 

Highlands club combined many smaller ones and formed in 1916 to support charitable, 

social and intellectual causes.  According to early documents, the purpose of the club 

was “The promotion of literacy and educational interests of the community, the 

development and furtherance of benevolent work, and the establishment and 

maintenance of a place of meeting.”  

The group began a building fund in 1920 and acquired a lot of land in 1927 on 

Columbus Street in part through the generosity of Seward W. Jones, who lived at 49 

Columbus Street and was father to one of the club’s founders, Mabel E. Jones McKay, 

who lived with her family at 46 Woodcliff Road in the Highlands. Originally the 

women’s club was interested in constructing a larger building, however, ran into a 

time dilemma in late 1926 when their art committee needed a space, and Jones 

offered the group the lot. In a letter dated October 23, 1926, Jones wrote to Mrs. 

Edwin F. Gibbs, then president of the club, and said “It is my hope that this can be 

made the center of the Club’s educational, philanthropic and all worth -while activities 

of a humanitarian nature.” The building at 72 Columbus Street was designed with the 

intention for it to be the center of the club, and to host committee activities, 

rehearsals, board meetings, classes and small lectures. Edward B. Stratton prepared 

plans for the Club Workshop, and the permits were pulled in 1927 and construction 

begin in March of that year.  The property is still owned and operated by the 

Workshop, Inc., consisting of members of the Newton Highlands Women’s Club. 

 

1929 City Atlas with 72 Columbus Street circled 
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c. Architectural Significance   The building is architecturally significant as an unusual 

example of the Colonial Revival and Spanish Eclectic styles.  The building has retained 

its original lot configuration and most of its defining architectural details, with the 

exception of ten windows that were replaced in 2003.  The front entrance was not 

originally designed to have been enclosed, and it is unclear if it was part of the original 

construction; however, if altered post construction, the change has acquired historic 

significance in its own right. Rear additions have been added to the building over time.  

9. Local Landmark Review (Sec. 22-64 (b). Designation) 

(a) At or after the public hearing, the commission by three-quarters (3/4) vote, but in no 
instance less than four (4) votes in the affirmative, may designate as a landmark any property 
within the city being or containing a building, structure or landscape which it determines to 
meet one or more of the following criteria:  

(1) the property significantly represents an architectural type, style or design 
distinguished by innovation, rarity, uniqueness, or overall quality of design, detailing, 
materials or craftsmanship; 

(2) the property is meaningfully associated with a person or persons who significantly 
contributed to the cultural, historic, architectural or archeological aspect of the 
development of the City of Newton, Commonwealth of Massachusetts, or the United 
States of America; 

(3) the property’s identification as a notable work of an architect, designer, engineer or 
builder whose work is significant in the history or development of the City of 
Newton, Commonwealth of Massachusetts or the United States of America; or 

(4) historic events or activities occurred at the property that have made an outstanding 
contribution to, or which best represent some important aspect of, the history of 
the City of Newton, Commonwealth of Massachusetts or the United States of 
America.   

(b) In determining whether to designate a property as a landmark, the commission shall also 
consider the following conditions: 

(1)  that the distinguishing characteristics of significance are for the most part original 
and intact or capable of restoration; 

(2) that the property, location and setting is compatible with future preservation and 
maintenance; and 

(3) the property’s context in relation to the City’s policies and adopted plans and the 
property’s surrounding area.  

10.  Landmark Designation Criteria    

The Women’s Club of Newton Highlands at 72 Columbus Street meets criteria for 
landmark designation as set forth in Section 22-64 of Newton’s Ordinance.  The property 
is: 
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• Meaningfully associated with the development of women’s clubs and its members which 
significantly contributed to the cultural, historic, architectural or archeological aspect in the 
City of Newton, Commonwealth of Massachusetts or the United States of America. 

• Documented historical events or activities occurred at the property that have made an 
outstanding contribution to, or which best represent some important aspect of, the history 
of the City of Newton, Commonwealth of Massachusetts or the United States of America.   

• A contributing resource to the Newton Highlands Historic District, which is listed on the 
National Register of Historic Places. 

• Associated with the historic development of Newton Highlands as a village. 

• Architecturally significant and intact example of a blend of Spanish Eclectic and Colonial 
Revival style designed by a prominent architect, which retains notable features. 

• Compatible with future preservation and use because the historic location and setting has 
been retained.  

11.   Recommendations 

The property has been maintained over time and adapted to modern use with accessibility 
improvements.  The building has also retained the style and appearance of its most visible 
period of historic significance.  This property continues to contribute to the Newton 
Highlands National Register-listed historic district. In accordance with the newly drafted local 
landmark ordinance: 

• this property is historically significant as it is the only remaining women’s clubhouse still in 
its intended use in the city and is directly associated with the development and activities of 
women’s clubs and its members which contributed to the cultural and social history in the 
City of Newton, Commonwealth of Massachusetts or the United States of America; 
 

• this historic property stands as an architectural type, style or design distinguished by 
innovation, rarity, uniqueness, or overall quality of design, detailing, materials or 
craftsmanship; 
 

• the property is associated with architect Edward B. Stratton who contributed to the 
commercial development of Newton’s villages and is a notable example and a signature 
building for Stratton, and at a minimum, contributes to the cultural, historic, architectural or 
archeological aspect of the development of the City of Newton, Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts, or the United States of America. 

a. Preservation Recommendations     The property has been maintained with repairs 

that were appropriate and which used compatible materials.  The building has also 

retained the style and appearance of its period of historic significance. 

b. Important Features   The defining features of this Colonial Revival and Spanish 

Eclectic style building are the general size and massing of the structure and its raised 



10 

parapets, front enclosed entrance, oversized fanlight and pediment, columns, chimneys, 

stucco sheathing and brick windowsills.   

12.   Standards for Design Review 

a. General Standards. All projects affecting the property should be evaluated by 

considering the effect that proposed changes would have on the general design, 

arrangement, texture, material and color of the features involved and the relationship of 

such features to the surrounding area.  In the case of additions, the appropriateness of 

size, shape and location of the additions is of critical concern.  The Secretary of Interior’s 

Standards for Rehabilitation should provide a baseline for review of changes to the 

landmark property. 

b. Specific Standards     Specific design standards have been addressed in the existing 

maintenance of the property regarding height, proportion of windows and doors, scale and 

architectural detail.  The same principles should be applied in developing a design for 

changes and in reviewing proposed changes, such that the important features retain their 

prominence and continue to stand out as prominent examples of the twentieth century 

Colonial and Spanish style building.  Thus, the following specific design standards refer to 

potential changes to the existing structure: 

Exterior Walls 

• Decorative elements should be preserved and only replaced by like materials 

and design when absolutely necessary. 

• No new openings should be allowed on the front façade or those sides visible 

from Columbus Street. 

• No existing openings should be filled in on the front façade or those sides 

visible from Columbus Street. 

Windows 

•     Surviving historic windows should be retained and repaired if possible. Where 

replacement windows are already evident, their in-kind replacement would be 

allowed. 

Entrances/Doors 

• The front entrance and door design and arrangement should be retained. 

• Replacement doors should be fabricated to match the style and materials of 

the originals and the construction period of the structure. 
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Roof 

• No changes should be made to the pitch or style of the roof 

14.  Notification 

The following properties are considered abutters for the purposes of notification. Owners 

of these properties should receive notice when this property is considered for landmark 

designation and for any future under the Landmark Ordinance. 

ADDRESS                                                                   
ROSES LORRAINE ELENA 63 COLUMBUS ST NEWTON, MA  02461 

E & J WALK RLTY LLC 98 BRIDLE TRAIL RD NEEDHAM, MA  02492 

JACOBS CLAUDIA J 69 COLUMBUS ST NEWTON, MA  02461 
WORKSHOP OF WOMANS CLUB OF 
NEWTON 72 COLUMBUS ST NEWTON, MA  02461 

EPGREENSPAN LLC 13 HOLLY AVE CAMBRIDGE , MA  02138 

HAMILTON LINEWT ASSOCIATES LLC 39 BRIGHTON AVE ALLSTON, MA  02134 

MALLIOS DIMITRIOS 831 BEACON ST #113 NEWTON, MA  02459 

 

Attachments: 

A) Photographs, 72 Columbus Street 

B) October 23, 1926, letter from Seward W. Jones to Mrs. Edwin F. Gibbs 

C) Permits on file with the Inspectional Services Department 

D) Original plans (1927).  Edward B. Stratton 

E) 1975 Floorplan of building, hand-drawn 

F) MACRIS Form B for 72 Columbus Street 

G) MACRIS Form A for Newton Highlands Historic District Extension 



 
Photograph of the front of the building 

 

 
Photograph of the front entry of the building 

 

ATTACHMENT A



 
Photograph of the right side of the building 

 

 
Photograph of the right side of the building 

 



 
Photograph of the left side of the building 

 

 
Photograph of a portion of the rear of the building 

 



 
Photograph of a portion of the rear of the building 
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ATTACHMENT C























 

Front elevation.  72 Columbus Street (1927) 

ATTACHMENT D



 

North elevation.  72 Columbus Street (1927) 



 

Rear elevation.  72 Columbus Street (1927) 



 

South elevation.  72 Columbus Street (1927) 
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72 Columbus Street, floorplan of building.  1975 
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